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 Transportation Advisory Board Report 
 
 
Date:  February 16, 2016 

To:  Transportation Advisory Board 

From:  Sabine Ellis, City Traffic Engineer 

Subject: Update to Sidewalk Width in City Code 
                     
 
Purpose and Recommendation 
 
To promote the vision of Mesa as a walkable and livable community and to be in 
compliance with Americans with Disabilities Act (‘ADA’) requirements as well as new 
Engineering Standards, staff recommends the following update to City Code: 
 
Subsection 9-6-5(B): Modify sidewalk width on local residential streets from four feet to 
five feet 

 
Background  
 
This has been discussed at the December 15, 2015 Transportation Advisory Board 
meeting.  At that time, the Board requested more information from staff regarding the 
impacts of the sidewalk widths to residential developments.  The information requested 
was: 
 

• To ensure that with the increased sidewalk width, utilities can be still be 
accommodated within the public right-of-way, and   

 
• To allow the option for a variance from the five-foot width. 

 
Staff collected this information since the December Transportation Advisory Board 
meeting and a summary is presented in the Discussion section below.   
 
Discussion 
 
Transportation staff met with the Engineering Department to discuss any issues for 
other utilities in the existing right-of-way or easements if the sidewalk width is increased.  
Based on their information, increasing the sidewalk width from four feet to five feet will 
not have a negative impact on any utilities that are located within the public right-of-way.  
Utilities can also be accommodated within utility easements that are required along all 
public streets in addition to the public right-of-way.  The Engineering Department is 
supportive of the increase in sidewalk width.   
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In regards to the issue of providing a variance to City standards, the City Engineer or 
City Traffic Engineer may review and approve requests for a deviation from the five-foot 
sidewalk requirement as long as it is in compliance with ADA.  The deviations to 
standards do not need City Council approval. 
 
One of the focal points of the 2040 Transportation Plan is making Mesa more inviting 
and accommodating for pedestrians by providing choices that give people the 
opportunity to walk.  Walking for recreational and utilitarian purposes has great benefits 
to the pedestrian and the surrounding environment, positively affecting the quality of life 
as well as the health of the walking individual and the community while reducing traffic 
and congestion.  Increasing the sidewalk width in residential communities from four feet 
to five feet promotes this vision by offering pedestrians additional space to walk at their 
chosen pace, stand, sit, socialize, or merely enjoy their surroundings. 
 
Alternatives 
 
Doing nothing is an alternative that is not recommended.  Subsection 9-6-5(B) of City 
Code specifically refers to the “Desert Uplands” planning area of Mesa, see attached 
figure for the proposed changes to City Code.  The sidewalk width for all other 
developments is regulated within Mesa’s Engineering Standards, which are in the 
process of being updated.  Making no changes to this subsection of City Code will 
contradict the new Engineering Standards. 
  
Coordination 
 
The proposed change to City Code has been coordinated with Engineering, 
Development Services, and the City Attorney’s office. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
There is no fiscal impact to this update. 
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